
CITY OF WIXOM 
49045 PONTIAC TRAIL 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, JULY 9, 2019 

 
Mayor Ziegler called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and the Pledge of Allegiance 
was recited.  
  
Present:  Mayor: R. Ziegler  
   Deputy Mayor: P. Beagle  
   Councilmembers: K. Gottschall 
    T. Gronlund-Fox 
    B. Leder  
    T. Rzeznik (Excused)  
    R. Smiley  
      
AGENDA CHANGES: 
In the absence of City Manager Steve Brown, Marilyn Stamper asked that 
Unfinished Business #2 (Recommendation to Enact an Ordinance to Amend the 
Code of Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.32, Controlled Substances and 
Paraphernalia, Article 1, by Amending and/or Adding Sec. 9.32.030 Through 
9.32.035 Related to Dispensing, Selling or Giving Product to an Individual Under 18 
Years of Age, to Exempt Matters Covered by State Statute; Article III, Possession of 
Marihuana, to Exempt Matters Covered by State Statutes Related to Marihuana; 
and to Provide Penalties for Violations Thereof) be removed from this agenda. 
 
MINUTES:  
CM-07-117-19: Moved and seconded by Deputy Mayor Beagle and Councilmember 
Smiley to approve the Regular City Council meeting minutes of June 25, 2019. 
  
  Vote:  Motion Carried 

CORRESPONDENCE:  
1.) Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of DTE Electric Company 

Case No. U-20521 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   
There were no comments at this time. 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORTS:  
1.) Fire Monthly Report - May 2019 
 
There were no comments or questions regarding this report. 
 
2.) Police Monthly Report - May 2019 
 
There were no comments or questions regarding this report. 
 
3.) Water Monthly Report - May 2019 
 
Deputy Mayor Beagle commented that there were more items in this report than we 
normally have, such as other projects under management, information regarding 



Wixom City Council Meeting ___________July 9, 2019                   _______Page 2 

 
lift stations, work order summaries, PFAS samplings and planned tasks. The report 
shows how much the City was billed for the dewatering equipment and chemical 
and labor costs. He wondered if that was just for the Council’s information. Mr. 
Delaney replied that they had some issues in 2018 and they invoiced the City for 
the costs they incurred at the time. He said it had been included in the report a 
couple of times. It was included this time to further explain the issues and the cost 
that they have incurred. Deputy Mayor Beagle asked if he had been reimbursed for 
those costs and Mr. Delaney answered that they have not. Ms. Stamper said that 
she would discuss that with Mr. Sikma.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
CM-07-118-19:  Motion and seconded made by Deputy Mayor Beagle and 
Councilmember Gronlund-Fox to approve the Consent Agenda as presented which 
included: 

1.)  Approval to receive and file: 
a. Library Board Minutes of May 20, 2018 
b. Downtown Development Authority Minutes of May 28, 2019 

 
Vote:  Motion Carried 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
1.) Recommendation to Enact an Ordinance to Amend the Code of 

Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.16, Offenses Pertaining to 
Property, Section 9.16.130, Trespassing, Subsection A. III, to Prohibit 
Trespassing on All Fenced or Posted Private Property 
 

CM-07-119-19:  Moved and seconded by Councilmembers Smiley and Gottschall 
to enact an ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Wixom, 
Chapter 9.16, Offenses Pertaining to Property, Section 9.16.130, Trespassing, 
Subsection A. III, to prohibit trespassing on all fenced or posted private property.    
 
 Vote:   Motion Carried 
 
2.) Recommendation to Enact an Ordinance to Amend the Code of 

Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.32, Controlled Substances 
and Paraphernalia, Article 1, by Amending and/or Adding Sec. 
9.32.030 Through 9.32.035 Related to Dispensing, Selling or Giving 
Product to an Individual Under 18 Years of Age, to Exempt Matters 
Covered by State Statute; Article III, Possession of Marihuana, to 
Exempt Matters Covered by State Statutes Related to Marihuana; and 
to Provide Penalties for Violations Thereof 

 
(This item was removed from the agenda.)  
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
1.) Request for Authorization to  Participate in the Sourcewell Cooperative 

Purchasing Program for the Purchase of Foldable Tables for City Hall 
from KI Incorporated of Green Bay, WI, in the amount of $5,810.56 

 



Wixom City Council Meeting ___________July 9, 2019                   _______Page 3 

 
CM-07-121-19: Moved and seconded by Deputy Mayor Beagle and Councilmember 
Smiley to authorize the participation with Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing 
Program for the purchase of foldable tables for City Hall from KI Incorporated of 
Green Bay, WI, in the amount of $5,810.56. 
 
Councilmember Gottschall clarified that these tables were for the Council room and 
Ms. Magee replied that was correct. Councilmember Gottschall knew that we bought 
folding tables on rotation. Ms. Magee said that we did that for the Community 
Center. These tables would be used in City Hall and they have not been replaced for 
many years. She said that many of the senior programs have been moved to City 
Hall when there are rentals at the Community Center. These new tables are easy to 
put up and take down. They are different than the current tables.   
 
  Vote:  Motion Carried 

2.) Recommendation to Waive the Bid Process and Award a Bid to 
Purchase a Leaf Collection Trailer from ARM ToughEquipment.com of 
Canton, Ohio in an Amount not to exceed $55,028 
 

CM-07-122-19:  Moved and seconded by Councilmember Smiley and Deputy 
Mayor Beagle to waive the bid process and award a bid to purchase a leaf collection 
trailer from ARM ToughEquipment.com of Canton, Ohio in an amount not to exceed 
$55,028. 
 
Mr. Sikma said staff solicited bids for equipment that would be delivered in time for 
leaf season. He indicated the trailer turned out to be $3,000 less than what they 
expected. 
 
Deputy Mayor Beagle was confused because he asked Council to waive the bid 
process; however, it appeared they solicited bids. Mr. Sikma said they typically 
went through MITN, but by the time they were notified that the expected bidders 
changed the price, it was too late in order to make it for this year’s leaf schedule. 
He felt this was another alternative in order to accommodate this season. Deputy 
Mayor Beagle asked why they would be waiving the bid process when they received 
bids.   
  
Ms. Stamper clarified that the DPW only received quotes from vendors. She 
explained that they did not advertise or have sealed bids come before City Hall to 
be opened and that was the reason they asked Council to waive the bid process.  
 
Councilmember Gottschall was aware that the vote to waive the bid had to be 
unanimous; however, he was not in favor of this. He thought it was more cost 
efficient to pay overtime to the DPW and continue to utilize the same equipment. 
Mr. Sikma thought that if they utilized the same equipment, they may need to 
increase staff for leaf collection in order to maintain service for late leaf falls. He 
said they were trying to develop a plan in order to maintain decent leaf collection at 
the least cost. This trailer would mean they would have two high-capacity leaf 
trailers out at the same time. It would also help when they were up against the 
winter months. Councilmember Gottschall thought part of the problem was with the 
way the system worked. He thought that people were blowing leaves to the curb 



Wixom City Council Meeting ___________July 9, 2019                   _______Page 4 

 
much sooner than their scheduled pick-up date. He felt the staff needed to review 
how they were instructing the residents because he thought it was making the 
situation worse by letting leaves sit at the curb for a while as opposed to telling 
people to bag their leaves. Mr. Sikma said they post it on Facebook, the newsletter, 
the website, etc. but it was tough to get the public to follow the schedule when they 
rake their leaves on their only day off regardless of the schedule. Mr. Sikma stated 
that adding a trailer would result in a more efficient leaf collection program. 
Councilmember Gottschall asked what the expected lifespan on the trailer was. Mr. 
Sikma thought it could last 15-20 years. 
 
Councilmember Leder felt the key word was efficiency. He felt the current program 
was not efficient. He recalled talking about this during the budget sessions and 
knew that one trailer could not make it to every subdivision as often as it needed 
to. Also, based on the age of the current trailer, they may be looking at purchasing 
a new trailer within the next three years anyway.  
 
Mayor Ziegler said it appeared that if Councilmember Gottschall was to vote no, the 
“waive the bid process” would fail. He appreciated that Councilmember Gottschall 
would look to see if there was a solution without having it fail completely. He asked 
what it would cost to have the City go out for bids. 
 
Ms. Stamper said it was mostly staff time; however, the larger issue was there 
would not be enough time to have the trailer built and delivered. She indicated that 
they hoped to use the MITN process, which allowed them not to waive the bid 
process because they were using the MITN bid, but because the MITN price 
exceeded what they could purchase the trailer for from another vendor they 
decided to go this route.   
 
Councilmember Gottschall recalled the only time they would see “waive the bid” 
was when it involved a sole proprietor or vendor (i.e. fire equipment) but now he 
felt they see more of this. He knew that he could contest this but it would hold 
everything up and he knew that he was the only member to feel this way. He asked 
what the half-size trailer cost was when they purchased it.  
 
Mr. Sikma said he was not sure but knew that it was three times less efficient. 
Councilmember Gottschall said this was a dollars and cents decision for him. He 
indicated that they needed to buy new equipment, maybe add staff, to cut overtime 
down marginally versus what they had now and buying another piece of equipment. 
He would not hold this hostage but cautioned staff against the quotes and waiving 
the bid process. 
 
Councilmember Gronlund-Fox asked if the purchase of this trailer would reduce 
overtime. Mr. Sikma said that it should.    
 
Councilmember Smiley asked what trailer would be on stand-by. Mr. Sikma said the 
small trailer.       
 
 Vote:   Motion Carried  



Wixom City Council Meeting ___________July 9, 2019                   _______Page 5 

 
3.) Request for Authorization to Participate in the State of Michigan 

Cooperative Purchasing Program for the Purchase of Pothole Patch 
Recycler Trailer from Falcon Road Maintenance Equipment, LLC of 
Midland, Michigan in an Amount no to Exceed $21,770.96 
 

CM-07-123-19:  Moved and seconded by Councilmembers Smiley and Gronlund-
Fox to authorize participation in the State of Michigan cooperative purchasing 
program for the purchase of a pothole patch recycler trailer from Falcon Road 
Maintenance Equipment, LLC of Midland, Michigan in an amount not to exceed 
$21,770.96.   
 
Mr. Sikma explained that this unit has a heating system that brings up the 
temperature of the cold patch. We can make small repairs on asphalt as well. We 
can rent a grinder and do a 6 x 12 patch of asphalt with this machine. He felt it was 
a reasonable rate and it was the best one on the market. 
 
 Vote:   Motion Carried 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
There were no comments at this time. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  
In the absence of Mr. Brown, Ms. Stamper commented that we received our 
renewal notice from MMRMA Property & Liability Insurance for fiscal year 2019-
2020 and our annual premium increased by 1.1% at $277,000. She indicated that 
we budgeted for a 2.5% increase, so she was quite happy about that. We are also 
receiving a disbursement that we get annually from MMRMA, which is just shy of 
$68,000. As we have done in the past, we chose to have those funds deposited into 
our retention funds at MMRMA to be used for future claims if we have them.  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
Deputy Mayor Beagle congratulated the Clerk’s Office on their audit from the last 
election. It went well. 
 
Councilmember Gronlund-Fox thanked staff and Councilmembers for all of the 
cards and phone calls regarding the death of her grandmother. She appreciated it 
very much. 
 
Councilmember Smiley mentioned it was a beautiful night for Lite the Night. 
There was a large crowd with lots of families. He thanked Wixom Police and Fire, as 
well as the Oakland County Sheriff’s Department. Next up is the Hot Blues and 
BBQ. He stated that they started paving the Michigan Air Line Trail and he 
wondered if there was a rough estimate as to when the paving would be complete. 
Mr. Sikma replied that they hope to go all the way to the end first and then they 
will come back within the next two or three weeks. They will raise it up just a little 
more.  
 
Councilmember Leder congratulated the Inter-Lakes Pride 90 Team, which is 
made up of a bunch of Wixom girls who won the USSSA State Softball Champion 
this weekend. Secondly, the item that most people ask him about was the 



Wixom City Council Meeting ___________July 9, 2019                   _______Page 6 

 
Creekside Development and the fact that the Planning Commission meeting was 
cancelled on July 1st at the last minute. He thought if they were going to cancel the 
public hearing, they would have to restart the application process and resubmit the 
plans and re-notice. He wanted to make sure that the residents would be made 
aware of anything that was going on. When they come back before the Planning 
Commission, he hoped all of the notices would go out to those within 300 feet, as 
well as placing the advertisements in the Spinal Column and the Oakland Press.  
 
Mayor Ziegler agreed. On that particular occasion, the applicant asked to have it 
adjourned. He assumed they would have to resubmit, but he didn’t know for sure. 
It does have a lot of people antsy because they seem to have a lot of false starts. 
He wanted to make sure the public got as much advanced notice as possible. 
 
Councilmember Gottschall said that it did seem that of all the City business and 
projects we have, that was one that always has scheduling issues. It gets put on an 
agenda, pulled from an agenda, meetings get cancelled or signs don’t get put up 
when they should have been put up. From the City’s perspective, the optics do not 
look good because we frequently get residents thinking there is something 
underhanded going on, which there definitely is not. It certainly doesn’t help that 
nobody can stick to a date and put signs up when they are supposed to put signs 
up. He thought it was almost to the point where someone needed to have a firm 
conversation with them. They are not doing the City or the residents any favors. 
Also, he shared his thoughts with Mark Clancey and his family on their loss. He 
thanked everyone who sponsored, worked on and donated time to the Lite the 
Night event. The attendance was great, as usual. People don’t just come downtown 
to watch the fireworks. They were all lined up along Walled Lake Western as well.  
 
Mayor Ziegler expressed his sympathies to Mark and Claudia Clancey on the loss 
of their son, Ryan. Mark served on Council for many years and he was a great 
Councilmember for us. He then was an employee in the DPW Department where he 
worked as a mechanic. He thought they were a very nice family and the Clancey 
kids grew up with his kids in the same neighborhood. It was a tragic loss. Also, 
Laure Dorchak, our Historical Society president, lost her mother recently. He passed 
along his sympathies to her and her family.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Catherine Buck 
City Clerk  
   

Approved 
7-23-2019 


	In the absence of City Manager Steve Brown, Marilyn Stamper asked that Unfinished Business #2 (Recommendation to Enact an Ordinance to Amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.32, Controlled Substances and Paraphernalia, Article 1...
	CORRESPONDENCE:
	1.) Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of DTE Electric Company Case No. U-20521
	1.)  Approval to receive and file:
	a. Library Board Minutes of May 20, 2018
	b. Downtown Development Authority Minutes of May 28, 2019
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
	1.) Recommendation to Enact an Ordinance to Amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.16, Offenses Pertaining to Property, Section 9.16.130, Trespassing, Subsection A. III, to Prohibit Trespassing on All Fenced or Posted Private Pr...
	CM-07-119-19:  Moved and seconded by Councilmembers Smiley and Gottschall to enact an ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.16, Offenses Pertaining to Property, Section 9.16.130, Trespassing, Subsection A. III, to ...
	Vote:   Motion Carried
	2.) Recommendation to Enact an Ordinance to Amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Wixom, Chapter 9.32, Controlled Substances and Paraphernalia, Article 1, by Amending and/or Adding Sec. 9.32.030 Through 9.32.035 Related to Dispensing, Selling o...
	NEW BUSINESS:
	1.) Request for Authorization to  Participate in the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program for the Purchase of Foldable Tables for City Hall from KI Incorporated of Green Bay, WI, in the amount of $5,810.56
	CM-07-121-19: Moved and seconded by Deputy Mayor Beagle and Councilmember Smiley to authorize the participation with Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program for the purchase of foldable tables for City Hall from KI Incorporated of Green Bay, WI, in ...
	Councilmember Gottschall clarified that these tables were for the Council room and Ms. Magee replied that was correct. Councilmember Gottschall knew that we bought folding tables on rotation. Ms. Magee said that we did that for the Community Center. T...
	2.) Recommendation to Waive the Bid Process and Award a Bid to Purchase a Leaf Collection Trailer from ARM ToughEquipment.com of Canton, Ohio in an Amount not to exceed $55,028
	CM-07-122-19:  Moved and seconded by Councilmember Smiley and Deputy Mayor Beagle to waive the bid process and award a bid to purchase a leaf collection trailer from ARM ToughEquipment.com of Canton, Ohio in an amount not to exceed $55,028.
	Mr. Sikma said staff solicited bids for equipment that would be delivered in time for leaf season. He indicated the trailer turned out to be $3,000 less than what they expected.
	Deputy Mayor Beagle was confused because he asked Council to waive the bid process; however, it appeared they solicited bids. Mr. Sikma said they typically went through MITN, but by the time they were notified that the expected bidders changed the pri...
	Ms. Stamper clarified that the DPW only received quotes from vendors. She explained that they did not advertise or have sealed bids come before City Hall to be opened and that was the reason they asked Council to waive the bid process.
	Councilmember Gottschall was aware that the vote to waive the bid had to be unanimous; however, he was not in favor of this. He thought it was more cost efficient to pay overtime to the DPW and continue to utilize the same equipment. Mr. Sikma thought...
	Councilmember Leder felt the key word was efficiency. He felt the current program was not efficient. He recalled talking about this during the budget sessions and knew that one trailer could not make it to every subdivision as often as it needed to. A...
	Mayor Ziegler said it appeared that if Councilmember Gottschall was to vote no, the “waive the bid process” would fail. He appreciated that Councilmember Gottschall would look to see if there was a solution without having it fail completely. He asked ...
	Ms. Stamper said it was mostly staff time; however, the larger issue was there would not be enough time to have the trailer built and delivered. She indicated that they hoped to use the MITN process, which allowed them not to waive the bid process bec...
	Councilmember Gottschall recalled the only time they would see “waive the bid” was when it involved a sole proprietor or vendor (i.e. fire equipment) but now he felt they see more of this. He knew that he could contest this but it would hold everythin...
	Mr. Sikma said he was not sure but knew that it was three times less efficient. Councilmember Gottschall said this was a dollars and cents decision for him. He indicated that they needed to buy new equipment, maybe add staff, to cut overtime down marg...
	Councilmember Gronlund-Fox asked if the purchase of this trailer would reduce overtime. Mr. Sikma said that it should.
	Councilmember Smiley asked what trailer would be on stand-by. Mr. Sikma said the small trailer.
	CM-07-123-19:  Moved and seconded by Councilmembers Smiley and Gronlund-Fox to authorize participation in the State of Michigan cooperative purchasing program for the purchase of a pothole patch recycler trailer from Falcon Road Maintenance Equipment,...
	Mr. Sikma explained that this unit has a heating system that brings up the temperature of the cold patch. We can make small repairs on asphalt as well. We can rent a grinder and do a 6 x 12 patch of asphalt with this machine. He felt it was a reasonab...
	Vote:   Motion Carried
	CALL TO THE PUBLIC:
	There were no comments at this time.
	CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  In the absence of Mr. Brown, Ms. Stamper commented that we received our renewal notice from MMRMA Property & Liability Insurance for fiscal year 2019-2020 and our annual premium increased by 1.1% at $277,000. She indicated that...

